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agencies and the judicial branch 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1, 2, 3 

 
Vice Chair Steiner opened the hearing on HB 1145. 
 
Rep. Nathan Toman appeared in support.  This bill puts in statute our right as duly 
elected representatives to introduce and work on legislation.  It prohibits any executive 
branch agencies and the judicial branch from introducing bills without a legislative 
sponsor or a committee sponsor.     
 
Rep. Hoverson:  Could you please explain the bill again?  
 
Rep. Toman:  The purpose of the bill is to prohibit executive branch agencies and judicial 
branch from introducing legislation without a legislative sponsor, be it a committee or a 
senator.  
 
Rep. Johnston:  ND is the only state that does this. They do this through their legislative 
assembly. This seems to be a separation of power.    
 
Rep. Toman: I would think that this is similar to the interim committee. 
 
Rep. Rohr: Did you ask legislative council to research any of the states? Just curious 
about what other states are doing. 
 
Rep. Toman: Last session I introduced similar bill.  We are the only state that does it this 
way. 
 
Rep. B. Koppelman: Could that be perceived as laziness? 
 
Rep. Toman:  That could be perceived as that way, it is too much work for us to even 
listen to them.  I understand what you are getting at? 
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Rep. B. Koppelman:  Wouldn’t you perceive it to be more important that we recognize the   
separation of powers that the constitution set up, even if it does require theoretically 
a duplication of process or a process that takes a little longer and that we not value efficiency 
over separation of powers. 
 
Rep. Toman:  I would totally agree with that.  I don’t think it’s an advocation of authority 
and separation of powers.     
 
Rep. Louser: Would you be open to removing legislative management committees?  
 
Rep. Toman:  I would be amiable to that.  We don’t want to have Rep. Delzer on every 
budget. 
 
Rep. Schneider:  Can you give me the figures again on the house and senate bills and then 
how many of those had committee sponsorship? 
 
Rep. Toman: 88 bills 25 appropriation bills on behalf of the committee.  They all have a 
committee sponsor.  
 
Rep. Schneider:  We worked very hard on our committees to come up with the bills that 
the committee supported.  
 
Rep. Toman:  We need to provide some clarity if the committee thinks that the chairman 

of that interim committee should be listed so that folks know who to go to with questions.  
 
Rep. Schneider:  I know how good you and Rep. Louser are with tech and how quick 
you can get the answers.  I bet you can find out who is on the committee and who 
chaired it pretty quickly.  
 
Rep. Toman:  Yes, all are on line.  When we are talking about the 5 o’clock deadline 
and we are trying to read these bills, the pre filed ones is where it comes into question. 
 
Rep. Karls:  Were the 88 bills, policy bills?     
 
Rep. Toman: I summed it up on the excel spread sheet that the council gave me and 
I think there might be some assigned appropriations, but I don’t know if they are direct 
appropriations bills so they could be policy bills with appropriations in them.  
 
Rep. Karls:  I can see your point on policy bills from the agencies. 
 
Rep. Toman:  I think it should be hard for our government to pass laws that affect our 
constituents and the people of our state.   
 
Rep. Karls:  We are all elected and we all give a vote. 
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Rep. Toman: It could also be costly, because if you don’t hire legal counsel staff 
or agency to draft these bills they can come to the legislature and say we have 
this problem and fix it for us.     
 
Rep. Johnston: There could be members on the committee that did not support the bill?  
Correct? 
 
Rep. Toman:  That is correct. 
 
Rep. Johnston:  Is that fair to those that did not support the bill to have their name is used 
on that committee.  
 
Rep. Toman:  That does bring up a very interesting point because you might be in the 
minority on those interim committee chairs and that carries the weight of that interim 
 committee saying yes that was a good idea.   
 
Rep. B. Koppelman: Do you have interim committee carrier or list those that were in  
favor of the bill interim committee and they become the sponsors of the bill. 
 
Rep. Toman: That would be a fine method or to even put the vote count on there. 
 
Vice Chair Steiner:  The automation tax credit is exactly what Rep. Johnston referred 
because in the interim taxation it wasn’t unanimous. I did support it and when it came 
in front of the committee of interim taxation I championed it and I was on the Do Pass 
side but it was not unanimous and so in effect that’s exactly what you are talking about. 
I chose to champion it for the committee but I didn’t have to.  There is a void if no one 
champions the bill.  Any other questions?  
 
Rep. Schneider: It is democracy at work. It is legislators voting to promote legislation 
that then goes to the legislature, the legislature then votes.  
 
Rep. Toman:  Provides a little more clarity to the citizens. 
 
Vice Chair Steiner:  Any other questions committee? 
 
Jared Hendrix, Minot, appeared in support.  Attachment 1.  (19:55-27:12) 
 
Chris Molden, citizen, appeared in support.  Introduced by a committee at the request of a 
board.  I would like to be on equal footing without having to run.  I think that these boards 
need a carrier.  They need a signer. They need to be accountable to the citizenry. 
 
Rep. Hoverson:  Could you give me a number on that bill?   
   
Mr. Molden: HB 1113 from this year. 
 
Opposition+ 
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Maggie Anderson, Department of Human Services, appeared in opposition.  Attachment 
2.  Thorough review of chapters.  Come up with changes 1136, 1116, 1118, 1117 Federal 
requirements.  We bring legislation forward because federal requirements that change or 
federal laws that happen. It is our responsibility to review those federal laws determine 
how they impact our programs or our financing of our programs and to make sure that 
those things are brought forward so that state statute is not inconsistent with federal statutes 
when it is a requirement of participating in those federal programs. Our purpose in bringing 
forward the legislation, many of these are very specific subject matter expertise type of  
reviews and changes and often times we are the only people who testify in our hearings.  
 
Rep. Laning:  Could you explain what’s your Internal processes and how do you go through 
and decide what bill you need to process?  
 
Maggie Anderson: We have a very detailed process, so for example, HB 1136 from last 
time. 
It is the large department of human services chapter 50-06 and so we (4 or 5) coming out 
of the 2015 session sat down and went through the entire bill.  We assigned divisions and  
said okay we are doing a full review of this chapter of code and so some of the sections 
that were assigned to the vocational rehabilitation division or the developmental disability 
division and each of those senior managers were responsible for reviewing that and then 
our legal advisory unit would do research if needed.  After researching, we come back  
together and edit those.  There were 15 bills that were brought forward for consideration 
going into the 2017 session, but we are very thoughtful about that so there are times 
where we have introduced policy bills.  We have a very thorough internal process and 
so we don’t do any work on bills until we are sure that it is needed.  The work that our 
legal advisory unit does relate to legislation is a very small portion of their roles in any 
biennium. 
 
Rep. Schauer:  How many of those 15 bills did you go to a legislator or legislative 
committee and say we have decided and they would say yes go and research it.  
 
Maggie Anderson:  We didn’t do that because this availability to the department to 
introduce legislation exists and we are very participative in the interim process when 
we know what bills there are.  These were bills again for very specific purposes for 
federal requirements or chapter reviews or things like that so we did not approach 
legislative sponsors. 
 
Rep. Schauer:   So who is the controlling authority to allow you to move forward on 
doing the legal work on these bills?  
 
Maggie Anderson:  At the time that I was executive director of the department of  
human services and that would have been my decision to have our staff do the  
background work to bring those bills forward to the governor’s office and then to the 
legislative council. 
 
Rep. Schauer:  How many policy bills of this 15 were there? 
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Maggie Anderson:  All of these are policy bills.  If we have a bill that has a fiscal impact, 
it is included in the governor’s request or the bill does not come forward.  This session 
SB 2106 is a complete review of chapter 5029 which is the children’s health insurance 
program chapter.  It is a complete review of that chapter, but we also have a budget 
proposal that is tied to the children’s health insurance program, so if the governor 
had not included that in his request we would not have introduced the changes to  
chapter 5029. 
 
Rep. Schauer:  How much time, effort, energy, money that was put into those 15 bills? 
 
Maggie Anderson: No I would not know.  I can tell you that some are very simple changes 
such as 1117, it is basically terminology. The language needed to be updated in code on all 
of these bills.  The work we did would have been done whether we would have found a  
legislative sponsor or whether the agency would have introduced them.  
 
Rep. Rohr:  I know that there are some agency bills that impact the consumer. What about 
those that you submit that should have some public input? 
 
Maggie Anderson:  There are times when we have to do clean up bills that have to do  
with the language. We updated the language to do with gambling and we worked with 
the gambling advisory council to provide input on those bills. We try to work with stakeholders 
who have a vested interest in those areas.  Do we miss the mark sometimes on that 
absolutely and that same thing happens with the interim committees.       
 
Rep. Louser:  The legislative council works for the legislature.  Is access provided to the 
agencies and the council permitted because agencies are permitted to introduce bills?  Is 
that the practice or interpretation to allow agencies access to legislative council?  
 
Maggie Anderson:  We have our own legal counsel within the department of human 
services.They are assistant AG’s.  They are the ones who draft the agency legislation.  They 
willreach out to legislative council if they have a billing and drafting question that is specific 
to some rules.    
 
Rep. B. Koppelman: If you can make the case to the legislative committee you have 
to have a sponsor, because someone has to stand up here and tell us why we should 
vote yes. 
 
Maggie Anderson: We submit the bills to legislative management or council by  
December 6th.  We don’t go to a committee they assign that committee. If I 
stood up here and one of our agency bills was in front of you I would say I am 
 Maggie Anderson with the department of human services.  I am here in  
support HB 1115 which was introduced at the request of the department of human services.  
We own our bills when we come before your committee.  
 
Rep. B. Koppelman:  So if you have to do that anyway, why not do that to a legislative 
sponsor?  Our current governor, by his actions and his words through vetoes and other 
things, has made it very clear that he values a bright line between separation of powers. 
Don’t step on the executive branches toes as legislative branch and we would assume 
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that he would value that vice versa the same way, so in keeping with that wouldn’t it 
make sense for you to get a legislator to buy into your policy prior to introduction? 
 
Maggie Anderson: I understand the question and I understand your perspective.   
What if nobody wanted to sponsor a long bill and one that has a lot of legislative history 
in it and so what if we weren’t able to find a sponsor?  What about a bill that had to update 
code?  What if we couldn’t find a sponsor?   
 
Rep. B. Koppelman:    Should legislators be the gatekeeper for what’s important coming 
from the legislative session or not?   
 
Maggie Anderson:  I don’t have an opinion, but look at the bills that we brought forth. 
  
Rep. Johnston:   You are the only ones testifying to committees.  Shouldn’t it make it easy 
to find a sponsor since your bills come out unanimous in both chambers?  They are good  
bills so shouldn’t it make it easy to find a sponsor? 
 
Maggie Anderson:  It would add an additional step in the process and additional time. 
 
Ken Sorenson, Special Assistant Attorney General, ND Department of Corrections and 
Rehabilitation appeared in opposition.  (55:45-1:00)(Attachment 3) 
 
Rep. Hoverson: Would you support citizenry?  After all we would vote on the citizen’s bills 
too. 
 
Mr. Sorenson: The legislative houses did this joint rule to get bills in.  The legislature 
has the authority to do procedural rules for them to introduce bills. 
 
Chairman Kasper:  Anyone else in opposition to HB1145?  Anyone neutral position on 
HB1145? 
 
Closed the hearing on HB1145.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to limitations on the introduction of legislative bills prepared by executive branch 
agencies and the judicial branch 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Kasper: opened the meeting on HB 1145. 
 
Rep. B. Koppelman:  This bill allows a legislator or a legislative interim committee to 
introduce a bill.  To make an improvement on the process for that interim committee to 
introduce either making those in favor be the sponsor of the bill or at the very least have 
somebody assigned as a bill carrier out of the interim committee.       
 
Rep. Rohr:  I will support the bill. The people that testified against it per se said it 
would only include one step and that is finding someone to sponsor that bill for them. 
I think that for the benefit for our citizens to come forth and either be supportive or 
oppose that bill is just a small thing to ask. 
 
Rep. Louser:  Rep. Schneider brings up a good point that it is easy to find who serves on 
the interim committees.  I still have that same concern with legislative management 
being able to sponsor a bill as opposed to either the chairman of the legislative  
management committee or an assigned member from the chairman.  Something that 
we didn’t talk about that we might want to consider if we do limit this and it should only 
be policy bills as opposed to budgets.   
 
Rep. Schauer: If policy is included in that, I will vote yes.  I was really offended by the 
comment that it was just another step.    
 
Chairman Kasper:  This is a huge policy change.  Maybe put this into a study. 
 
Rep. Louser:  Advantageous to some local legislators or disadvantageous.  There is enough 
here to warrant a study. 
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Rep. B. Koppelman:  I don’t believe executive branch has any business introducing policy 
as a bill.  They can bounce it off a policy maker and say this is a good idea just like a  
citizen does, but they have no constitutional authority to make policy at all.   
 
Rep. C. Johnson:  Pick an agency and have a pilot program. 
 
Rep. Schneider:  I don’t see this as a separation of powers issue at all.  Helpful through the 
interim process.  I just don’t see the reason for making this drastic change. 
 
Rep. Rohr:  Motion for Do Pass on HB 1145. 
 
Rep. B. Koppelman:  Seconded motion. 
 
Chairman Kasper:  Any more discussion committee? 
 
Rep. Rohr:  Reconsider motion on HB 1145. 
 
Rep. B. Koppelman:  Withdraw the second. 
 
Chairman Kasper:  We have this back in front of us with no motion. 
 
Rep.  B. Koppelman:  If we were to put this into a study, my fear is with any study, 
there will be a lot of pressure to try to influence people to not take the 
study up as to not diminish their power as they see it.  What is the best form we 
could put this in?  
 
Chairman Kasper:  A mandatory study, but either way the legislative management 
is going to decide.  Further discussion? 
 
Rep. Louser:  I move to amend HB 1145 to a shall study. 
 
Rep. Schauer:  Seconded motion. 
 
Voice Vote Carried. 
 
Rep. Laning:  Moves a Do Pass as amended on HB 1145. 
 
Rep. Rohr:  Seconded motion. 
 
Roll Call Vote  Yes 10  No  2  Absent  2 
 
Rep. Louser is the Carrier. 
 
Chairman Kasper:  There is a motion to reconsider on HB 1145. 
 
Rep. Vetter:  Made the motion to reconsider. 
 
Rep. B. Koppelman:  Seconded motion. 
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Chairman Kasper:  The prime sponsor does not want to turn it into a study, he wants 
it voted on the merits so we will take a Voice Vote on reconsideration. 
Voice Vote carries so the bill is back before us with no action on it.  We will wait 
until next week to take action on it. 
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Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Kasper: Take up HB1145 
 
Rep. B. Koppelman:  I would move the bill back into its original form.   
 
 Rep. Johnston: Seconded the motion  
 
Chairman Kasper:  We are going back to the original bill with no amendment. 
 
Voice vote.  Motion carries. 
 
Rep. Louser:  Since we heard this bill we’ve heard other bills that came from the 
initiated referred measures commission as introduced legislation.  Two-thirds of that 
commission including the chairman weren’t in the legislature.  The first one that we 
heard before this one we were scrambling as a committee who is going to introduce 
it.  If everyone recalls Claire Ness was here at the last minute. There was nobody to  
turn to, there was nobody to ask questions.  We had to have Claire email us the results 
of that commission and the votes and we had to revisit that discussion again today  
even though 3034 had a sponsor.  That’s an example and even that would still be  
allowed under this bill because it says legislative management committee.  I know 
what committees I have served on and I would prefer to see this amended to model 
all legislative management committees.  I would move a Do Pass. 
 
Chairman Kasper:  Rep. Louser made motion for Do Pass and seconded by  
Rep. B. Koppelman.   Further discussion committee? 
 
 Rep. B. Koppelman:   We voted to strip the amendment but either way I think we 
have done all we can do and it will be okay. 
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Chairman Kasper:  You may recall Maggie Anderson’s testimony about the  
complexity that they have to follow with the federal and state guidelines and 
the numerous meetings that they have and the committee discussions they have 
to get to the point of coming up with agency bills.  I’ve been involved with health 
care reform where we deal with her agency a lot and that is technical and   
complicated.  The only question I would ask is if you would put your name to a bill 
you knew nothing about, would you want to do that? 
 
Rep. Vetter:  I’m wondering if any agency bills ever cut their budget or do anything 
like that?  I think this is a no brainer.  We are the legislative branch.  We should be 
the ones holding that power, not delegating that authority to agencies that are only 
going to submit bills that help them out.  I am not submitting bills to help myself out  
personally, so why should agencies do that?  A normal citizen can’t come to this 
legislature and say that they want to submit a bill.  They have to go to a legislator. 
So why should not an agency? 
 
Rep. B. Koppelman:  What if there is something that affected federal funds?  My 
answer to that is you follow the law that is put in front of you and if you can’t find 
a sponsor, it must be a bad idea. 
 
Rep. Louser:  There are some improvements that can be made to this and one of 
them would be budget related.  This is a step in the right direction.     
 
Chairman Kasper:  Further discussion? 
 
Rep. Schauer:  In my notes I had the word policy not budgets.   
 
Rep. Louser:  I think that right now we should vote on what we had in front of us. 
 
Roll Call Vote Yes 9  No 5  Absent 0 
 
Rep. Louser is the Carrier. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to limitations on the introduction of legislative bills prepared by executive branch 
agencies and the judicial branch.  
 

Minutes:                                                  Att # 1 – Maggie Anderson, Att #2 – Travis Engelhardt 

 
Chairman Davison: Let’s open the hearing for HB1145. 
 
Rep. Nathan Toman, Dist. 34, Mandan: This bill is short and it prohibits agencies from 
introducing agencies from introducing bills, and they must find a bill sponsor. The bill has two   
exceptions on line 10 and 11 allow for legislative management or interim committees to 
introduce legislation. It needs to have one legislator. Any questions? 
 
Chairman Davison:  This has not been the case as long as I remember. (2.24) 
 
Rep. Toman: It has been by rules that we have allowed that.  
 
Chairman Davison: Do you feel there is a problem we are trying to solve? What should a 
better outcome be? 
 
Rep. Toman: It is a separation of powers issue with me. They should bring it to use the 
elected lawmakers. The agencies are the executive branch. (2.58) 
 
Vice Chair Meyer: How many agency bill s are put in each session? 
 
Rep. Toman: I had that during the House hearing but do not have it with me. I could e-mail 
that to you. (3.41) I think 20% or so maybe.  
 
Emmery Mehlhoff, Farm Bureau:  Here in support of this bill. We have long had policy in 
the books for this. We don’t want state agencies sponsoring, fostering or authoring 
legislation. We think state agencies would have the ability to bypass the process of finding a 
legislative sponsor. (5.11) 
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Rep. Scott Louser, Dist. 5, Minot: I am in support of this bill. We had a bill that came over 
to Government and Veterans Affairs Committee in the House. From an interim meeting we 
had bill from there. The chairman from that interim committee was not a legislator. There 
were 12 people, of which 6 were legislators, and none from L.C. We had the bill before us 
with no one to present it. I would like this bill to include a legislator instead of an interim 
committee as well. (7.27) Any questions? 
 
Chairman Davison: Any more in support? Agency?  Any opposed? 
 
Maggie Anderson, Dept. of Human Services: We are opposed to this bill. I brought forward 
some bill summaries from HS. (see att #1) We do a very thorough vetting process internally 
before we bring bills forward. We go through the governor’s office and talking to stake 
holders. We do bills that we do thorough review of Code. She went through the bills on her 
summary sheets. Sometimes there are federal changes we have to deal with in a bill. (17.00) 
 
Chairman Davison: If someone approached me with something reasonable, I would 
sponsor, but I may suggest finding someone on Human Services who knows your agency 
better. (17.17) Any more testimony.  
 
Travis Engelhardt, N.D. Dept. of Corrections & Rehabilitation (DOCR): We are opposed 
to this bill. (see att# 2) We agree with what Maggie said.  Please Do Not Pass. Any questions? 
(19.01) 
 
Chairman Davison: Any more testimony opposed?  The hearing is closed.  
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      Committee Clerk: Pam Dever 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to limitations on the introduction of legislative bills prepared by executive branch 
agencies and the judicial branch.   
 

Minutes:                                                   

 
Chairman Davison: Look at HB1145.  What are the committee wishes?  
 
Sen. Kristin Roers: I can see the intent behind it. I sit on Human Services and know all the 
technical corrections and would have to carry those bills. I don’t know if there is another way 
to deal with this. Maybe we should change the committee structure in Human Services. I 
don’t know if this bill in necessary.   
 
Chairman Davison: Rep Toman said we did it through the rules process. So there is a way 
to do without writing into Code. (1.15)   
 
Sen. Kristin Roers: It is not so bad to carry the bill in front of your own committee, but doing 
it in the House and vice versa, you don’t know the group. You ask Maggie to come up and 
explain it. Happens all the time. (2.48) 
 
Sen. Erin Oban: This is just about efficiency. This just adds a level of inefficiency with this 
bill. (3.27) The process we use now with agencies still goes through the same process every 
other bill has to do through. The authority of what we do stays intact. 
 
Sen. Erin Oban: I move a DO NOT PASS on HB1145.        Sen. Kristin Roers: I second.  
 
Chairman Davison: Discussion? Roll:   YES  --  7    NO  --  0   -0-absent.   
DO NOT PASS – passed.                     Sen. Kristin Roers will carry the bill.  
 
Done (5.00) 
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